IN THE SUPERI OR COURT
O THE
COMMONWEALTH OF THE NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS

DORA C. REYES, CIVIL ACTION NO, 88-744

Plaintiff,
V., MEMORANDUM DECISICH
DELFIN D. EBETUER, et zl.,

; 1986, the plaintiff and defendanti/
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into & written <contract for the constructicn of a
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concrete house. According to the contract, the house was to be
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ana  specifications o©f & Mihaville model type 3-E house, &
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Separate  gocument entitled, caltional General Conditions
Constryucticon Corirzon® wes eyeocouted the marties ar ol il

area supervisor and made a part of the originszl construction

contract. The provisions of +this document included one that

lar is used although the complaint names an

WO companies. It IS allegeé that the companies
er which the individual, Delfin bp. Ebetuer,
endant does not deny this. Thus the party
all practical purposes, Delfin D. Ebetuer.

individuail an
are just names u
operates andc d
being suea ig, f
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to secure pricr FmEA approval of anv

changes from the plans, specificatiocons, and MPS.

The defendant completed construction of the house on

Mey 30, er!

Oy

986 &and gave the plaintiff ai executed buil
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warranty. The builder's warranty was limited to any defects
occurring within one year of completion and reguired the

ive the defendant written notice of anvy csuch

defects. The warranty specifically steted that it was in
acdition to any other “rights and privileces” the plaintiffl
be entitled to.

The plaeintiff moved in on June 2, 1986, Shortly

thereafter the plaintiff began experiencing problems with her

new home that becan with a door lock sticki
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beams, &and ceiling. The plaintiff notified the defendant of
these defects to which the deferndant responded with ineffective
repair attempts., The defendant also advised the plaintiff thet

the «cracks in the walls, beams, and ceiling of her home were
not scerious and could be corrected with @ plastering job.

S0 numerous other Jeficiencies i
plaintiff's new home having to do with the carport, smoke
alarm, interior and exterior paint, floor tiles, windovs,
doors, roof «elope, roof beam rebars, and termite infestation.
The plaintiff filed the instant action on November 2, 198§

correct these deficiencies. & trial on the merits was had on




Februery 20, 19920, Lt the conclusd ¢f the trizl the court
crdered the parties to submit their closing and rebuttal
arguments in brief form. This Memorandum Decision followed.

PRETRIAL ADMISSIONS

In 1its order of January 31, 1990, the court granted

the plaintiff's motion to strike the defendant's responses to

I I ol PN S £ ae E QU . ~ A oy 3T ey e
plaintiff's Reguests Lor Admliezion and angvers to
L. - ~ ! - Yoy 4 ] - - - .. N L

interrocatories &s being untimely filed. Pursuant to

- Plaeintiff's witness gqualified as an expert on
construction matters including construction

- There are cracks in concrete plastered walls,
ceiling, roof, roof ©beams, and at the corners of

- Extericr wall paint is <chaelky and easily rubbed
off. Interior and exterior ceiling paint iz
Flfebtering  arnd poalinc off in lerae cheote

because there 1s no penetration of the paint into

- The rusty gpots in the carport ceiling are & sign
of concrete spalling where pieces of concrete
break off and fall out.

- There is no slope on the roof although the plans




the roof which is exacerbated by downspouts not
fiuveh to the roof surfece.
- The concrete roof slab is soft which 1is

indicative of too much water in the concrete mix.

- The door openings are oversized, Grout used to
£i111 gaps between the wzlls and door frames is
cracked and falling out.

- The windovw openings are oversigzed. The window
frames are fit to the concrete using wood strips,
contrary to the plans which call for & direct
mounting of the window frames to the concrete.

- The doorknobs do not work properly. The garage
¢ead bolt ie permanently stuck and the bathroon
goorknob is no longer functional.

- There is termite infestation at the house.

complaint that the defendant caused any of the admitted

defects, liability will be imposed.

MAGNUSOR-MOSS WARRANTY ACT CLAIM

The plaintiff invokes the protection of the
legnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.Ss.cC. §§ 2301-2211, and
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compleint, The pleintiff maintains that by giving her 3

written warranty, the defendant is unable to disclaim the

in-,plied warranty of merchantability that 1S given with any sale

of consumer goods.3/ 15 U.S.C. § 2308.

The applicable part of 15 U.S.C. § 2308 provides:

"{a) Wo supplier may disclaim or modify ...
any implied warranty to & consumer with
respect to such consumer DYDOUut 11 {1)
such supplier makes any itten
warranty to the consumer with re\ptﬂt
to such consumer product....®

The plaintiff has defined the materials used to
construct her house as “consumer products" within the meaning

of the zct in order to trigger its application to her cause gf

m

ction. Section 2301 of the ict defines consumer product as:

=

... &ny tangible personal property which is
distributed in commerce and which is
normaily used for p@rcona", family, or
househola purposes {including any such
property intended to be attached to or
ingtalled in &any real property without
reczyr to whether it i1s g0 attached or
installied).”

-5

'é‘ -~ - 3 - + 3
Section 2310(d) provides a private cause of action for

damages, costs and expenses to consumers who are damaged by the
failure ©f a supplier, warrantor, or service contractor to
comply with any ohbligation under the act or under an implied
warranty, written warranty Or& service contract.

‘§ ~P|C@ 23 s that a warran F%rt at . gocds |?

ovides,
mplied in a contract he Soi@
respect to goods of that klnd




consumer producte distributed in commerce bkut only a builder of
houses, he issue of the applicability of the Magnuson-}Moss
tct to the defendant's business and more specifically to the

Wwritten warranty he gave the plaintiff would be a vexatious one

)
]

deed were it not for the Federal Trade Commission Regulations
cefining the scope of the RAct's protection. These vregulations

make clezr that the Zct 1s restricted to "tangible personal

property which ig normally vused for personal, family oY
household purposes,®™ 16 C.F.R. § 700.1(a), &nd that, therefore,

coverage of  building

nater e not separate items of
eguipm ¢ on the nature of the
purchsss nsa o, An anzlysis of the
transactlon WI Il determine whether the goods
are real Or personal property, The numercus
products which go into the construction of a
consumer dwelling are all consumer products
whgn sold T"over the counter,” as by hardware
and building supply retailers. This IS also
true where & consumer contracts fo the
purchase £ such materials in conm:ction
with Fhe improvement, repair, or
mocificatior ol 2 home {for sririle,
dropped cellings, siding, roofing,

storm wingows, remodeling). However, where
such products are at the time of sale

integrated into the structure of a dwelling
they are not consumer products as they
cannot be practically distinguished fromn
realty. rnus, for exanpl e, the beams,
wallboarg, wirirygr plumbing, windows,
roofing, and other structural components of
a dwelling are not consumer roducts when

cney are  scld as part of real estate covered
by a written warranty.




e oOr an in-?round
swimming pool) the building materials to be
used are not consumer products., Although
the materials are separately identifiable at
the time the contract is made, it is the
intention of the parties to contract for the

(£) a consumer
with buillder construct a
substantial eddition to @ home, or other
A a
i

construction of realty which will integrate

the component materials. of course, as

noted above, any separate itens of 60q1pm€nt

£~ pe atbtached to  cuch realt ore e

proguccs unaer the ACTL T 16

TO00.1(e)-(f) (1289,

The court concludes that as a matter of law, the
Magnusen-lioss  Act doeg not aprly to the sort of
by the defendant in the instant case. As a resgult, the
plaintiff’s complaint fails to state & cognizable claim with
respect to the Magnuson-Moss Act.

BREACHE OF CONTRACT CLAIM

When performance of & duty under & contract is due,
any nonperformance 18 a Dbreach. Restatement {Second) of
Corntracts § 235.(z) (1979).%/ The comment to this section
Jefines nonperformance as including defective performance.

There 1s no qguestion her that the parties upon

entering into & wvalid «construction contract had an obli igation
to each other to perform the <contract requirements. The

plaintiff had a&an obligation to the defendant for his

o}
O
L

The Restatement 1S made applicable in the cnMI by




and MP5, It is undisputed that the plaintiff has paid the
defendant. However, the existence of defects at the plaintiff's

home leaves open the guestion of whether the defendant fulfilled
hie obligation to construct the plaintiff's home in accordance

with the plans and MPS. 1In answering this guestion, the court
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exposure, The plaintiff's expert

testifiecd that the cracks 1in the concrete of plaintiff's home

o ~ e P B VA oo X 3 1 - ~ b 1w P
may have been caused by too much water in the concrete mi¥, &
viclation of § 603-2.3(s) of the WMPS, or by retempering, a

violation of § 603-3.3(f) of the WMPS. In any event, the
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plaintiff's expert &also testified that the cracke were a
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om the generally accepted practices

within the construction industry.
S i o . ] r ~ ~ L - ] N
buring cdirect examination, the defendant asked his
crpert & Series Ol Cuestions cesigned Lo crezte the suggestion
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that the ¢ nd ceiling of the plaintiff's home

are merely "“hai
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deflection cracks” which were likely caucsed
Ly an  earthquake tremor. However, when shown photographs of the
cracre on crose exemination, the defendant's expert testified
that the cracks were larger than the type of ‘"hairline

deilection crack®™ he had referred to during his direct
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Section 509-1.1 of the IMPS reguires that the paint

used on interior and exterior surfaces to be durable with a
specific provision that exterior paint be resistant to
deterioration by the elements. The plaintiff's expert
tectified thet exterior crade paint wee not used on the
pleintiff's house. This testimony was unrebutted,

defendant admits, are indications that water was added to
the paint or that the ¥terior surface was inadeguately
prepared by the defendant according t the plaintiff's expert.
This testimony was also unrebutted.

Mrg 8§ 509-4.3 &nd 509-7.5 reqguire that interior paint
provide a washable finish, 1Interior paint was to be resistant

tained or dameged by grease, weter, detergents and

- - 3 3 ol 3 - # (5] R A £ H - [ o )
normal household chemicals, The plaintiff's expert testified
I - e — ~ e N - . 3 " £
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house., Again, there was no rebuttal of this testimony.

n if the defencdant's expert had not change3 his
£

opiniolr regarding he «cracks, the court finds no basis for the
defendant'c assertion as to their origin, In his answer to the
pleintiff's conplaint, the defendant claims thcf the cracks in
the concrete of plalntlff home resulted from an earthguake
tremor  which occurrec chetlme in Karch of 1988. The defendant
has not |ntroduced any seismic repcrts OF anv other evidence to
back up its claim that such a trenDr occurred.
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within the plaintif
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lhe concrete rocof slab

"soft"

£
ffts C
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1wtiff's expert te

the seepage w

concrete roof slab and th

of the house. See discussio

o Ciscount this eyplanation

thecrizing that moisture pres
£'s home was ceausing the

lanation bec appar

for twne water gstains on

stified after
as due to a
e ponding oOf

n, infra. The

the concrete

gslah 1O seep

soft condition

trial that the
the MPS by

strength test done eight davs after

& vieclation of MPS §§ 500 and 609-3.1(aj.

The plaintiff's expert tesgtified that
sigb was "soft” and that the surface was easily s
added that this was the result of too much
concrete miy. This cdefective conaition was &adm
Aol endard e e nre Thre rvlgs-

j b = prea . T i
also testified that this softness ~~.ushe roof
water and recuced 1ts overall strength,/ The

&6/

The defendant attempted to prove &t
rocf slabk met the strength reqguirements of
introducing evidence of a
pouring. Such evidence 1s meaningless unless its
ie explained by an expert witness which the def
provide. See lagofna V. Demapan, Civil Action No.
Dist, Cct. 2pril 19, 1983).

- 10 -

U)

ignificance
endant did not
81-0077 (NMI




the plerns. The combination of NO roof <clope an

cf the concrete roof slab

The plaintiff's expert testimony also revealed, and
the defendant admitted in the pretrial admissions, that the
plaintiff's roof has no slope to it. The plans ang
specifications each call for different slopes. The plans call

for a slope of 1/8 inch per foot and the specifications call

fer 1/4 inch per foot. The current wvers w==L8 nertier £.07e
recuirement and is & clear deviation from the

Tne defendant's admissions and the testimony &t trial
o1 e~ - - o~ P 3 .
show that downspouts atop the roof . nott flush with the

roof's surface as required by the drawing in Section 5 2-2 of

c

wd

the raised

jownspout results in the ponding of the water up to the leve

of the downspouts before it drains off the plaintiff's roof.’/
The defendant haes admitted and the trial testimony
shows that there isg concrete "spal

ling"™ on the carport ceiling
t

of the plaintiff's home. The plaintiff's expert. tes

’\J
Yot

concrete T"epalling™ occurs when the rebars are placed too near

T 1~ - N, - ~ ~ T . - 3 >
the eoge of the concrete., In this case, the rebars Sorrodced
e evmanded cARUuSIn. the coneyetos b Fmd ot S -
: Shak-Rets causing the Soney et s - - cot, A

condition IS & violation of MPS § 603-1, supra.

-
/1

The defendant cliazims that the ponding of water on
the plaintiff's roof is the result of debris on the roo:
clogging the downspouts. The cour nsiders. this ,.unlikel
unhgg ? LCQLlpogb i su pport o% ﬁ {ann |nd|cate5 t¥e
presence of soda cans at the bottom of tho downspouts which in
any event were not large encugh to clog the downspouts.
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The nas also admitted S the trizl
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discloses that the dJdoor and window openings are

overcized. 1In the case of the doors, grout used to fill the
gap between the concrete edge and the door frame is cracked and
falling out. There was unrebutted testimony that wood strips

also filled the gaps between the concrete edge and door frame.

FPursuant to § 60&-2.1, doors are to be westher tight
A B PR | A A 4 = - .
ceulked Adcitioneglly, the plan
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directly to the concrete edge o

The window 1installation suffers from the same defects

&€ the doors. ¥Vood strips have been used to fill the gap
between the concrete eand window frames. The wood has since
shrunk sng rotted away in places leaving gaps. The window

drawings in the plans indicate that the window frames are to be

mounted directly to the edge of the concrete wall. The
defective window installation violates MPS §§ 500, 607-4.1(qd),
606~4.1, and 608-4.4.

The defendant has the
prointiffte house 2 ks eyt

testified that this was probably due to the use of "poor guality
materiale.” The bathroom doorknob does ncot work and that it does
not have a privacy lock that can be opened from the outside in
emergencies, & violation of MPS § 402-3.4(d). Testimony also
revealed that the garage door dead bolt is permanently stuck.

Such & condition is a violation of MPS § 402.3-4(a).
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The piaintiff testified that rlocr tiles were coming
T 1 . B 3 . WY Y O Iy Y1 - NN ; - - IR
up throughout the house. NMPS § 509-9.1 reguires that all such

finishing be resistant to moisture in areas subject to moisture
and reasonably durable. The defendant attempted to shift blame
for this defect onto the plaintiff by showing that she left 2

water faucet on overnight once, causing some water to spill

: b £ A P £9 T a e - L e e P & _ -
onto & semall area of the floor, This argument fazils to take
2 e ke . - 3 . b B - N TN 4
into &account the feact thet tiles are coming up tnrougheout  the

nouse well beyond the area where the water gpilied on that one

occasion.,

The defendant has admitted that the plaintiff's home
iz infested with termites,. The plaintiff's expert testified

that there were signs of termites underneath & sink of the

ntiff's home. MPS

™
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606-2.1 requireé the defendant to
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provide protection &against termites where they are determined

though protection was provided against
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te  be
ground termites, the testimony reveals that the defendant &id

airborne termites, also & hazard
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in the CHNMI. This testimony was unrebutted.

The ccle ntifs £ estopped
from asserting cate because FmHA

inspected and approved

at various stages throughout nstructi A contractor is not

relieved of his duty to construct a house in sccordance with

agreed plans anc specifications merely because an FmHA
inspector approved the contractor's work, Fox v. Webb, 268 Ala.




inspector

revealea that
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the
trust
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this inspector was a FIHA employee and was

benefit of the MIHA, the holder of the real estate deed

t. The actions of the MIHA inspector have nothing to do
icgues in dispute.

The cefendant has the eyistence of all the

jefectes in tne plaintiff's house. The pleintifi’s

7itness testified that &1l of these defects were
ial deviaticons frem acceptable construction practices.
stimony wag unrebutted. The defendant's own expert

¢ that the slopeless rocf &and the carport ceiling
Were 3 gubstantial deviation from acceptable

The court concludes ags & matter of law that each of

DT T? 1:\' T.TTY

In her third cause of action, the plaintiff &alleces

endant has breached an implied warranty of habitability
construction

This court folliowed the majority of jurisdictions in

it recognized that an implied warranty

owners of new




e~ . £ o} 3 Ay ; [, <y 4 o - - - 10
rhomes from shoddy workmanship. Babauta v, Valdez, 2 Cr 1181
orC 1987) .87 tThe warranty of habitability ig founded on the

notion that a contractor impliedly represents that the house
will be erected IN a reasonably workmanlike manner and Will bpe

reasonably fit for habitation. Shipper v. Levitt, 44 N.J. 70,

207 A.2d 314, 325 (1965).

Based on the findings in the discussior of the
ST e S H 1 — - - 3 e~ -
vlaintiff's breach of contract claim, supré, the court
WS | D e - P, - FR % - : = — 2T G|
concludes as & matter of le that the gefendant breached the

CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT

In her fourth cause of action the plaintiff alleges
that t defendant wvioclsated the provigions of the Ccnsuner
Protection Act, 4 CMC §&§ 5101-14. Section 5103 of the Aact
contains & list of prohibited acts "in the conduct of any trade
or commerce® oOf which three are applicable to the instant case:

&/ . .

Fhe defendant asserts that 1
PoraireRdnd ie recoonized in onlv 2 min@ri-” :
anc only applies to builder-vendors o©f new 1Ome s ot Lo
contractors who construct homes on the own Y's property as the
defendant did in th instant case. The warranty of
hebitebility |s the majority rule. Shedd, The Implied Warranty

)
of Habitability: New rnpllcailons, New Applications, & Rea
rstate L.J. 291, 29t (1980). Even if It were not the majority
rule, it is the rule in this Jurisdiction. Moreover, the
waerranty of habitability &pplies egually to a builder such as
the defendant who constructs a house on the ownert's property
and a builder-vendor who constructs homes oOn land he is
éeveWOping. Moxliey v, Laramie Builders, 600 P.2d 7
1979).
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charaecteristics, ingredients ... that thev do rnot
have,...

(g) Representing that cocods or services are of &
particular standard, quality, or grade ... if
they are of ancther.

{m) Engaging in any &act or practice which ig unfair

or deceptive to the consumer.
The plaintiff bases this caucse of action Or
Section 5106 of the Act which grants a private cause of action

.
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"... purchases or leases goods OF Services
p?imarily for persconal famil househola

purposes and therel suffers any
cocertainable logss of r property,
real Oor perscnal, as a r the use or
employment by another person of a method,
act Ol practice declared unlawful by Section
5103.,..." (emphasis edd ed}.
T Lhaigs cese, tie  piaintifii  contracred and ikey;

the defendant's services in the construction of & home for
herself and her family. It is beyond question that the
cefendant rendered these services primarily for family or

household purposes.

There iec an implied representation IN every contr

for workx or services that the wrk or services wll be

(3]
o
!




performed ckillfully, carefully, diligently, and in &
workmanlike manner. 17 AmJurzdé, Contractcs, § 371. This
implied representation was present in the plaintiff's

construction contract with the defendant. The fact that this
representation of workmanlike construction was false IS
stablished by the court's findings in the discussion of the

plaintiff's breach of contract claim, supra. Consequently, the

court concludes as a metter of law that the defendant's
reprecer of workmanlike congtruction of plaintiff's home

vicliates Section 5103(e) ancd (g) sf the act.

The defencant argues that the C(Consumer Protection Act

does not apply under the c¢ircumstances of this case. The
defendant focuses his argument solely on the plaintiff's claim

that. the defendant told her the problems at her house were

minor and not sericus. While this statement WaAS made well
af rformance Of services for the aintiff, the courc

ter the pe
finds that the representaticn was in fact false and relates

back to the services performed under the contract. The cocurt

concliudes as & matter of law that such & representation lg
“iclation ¢f Section 5102(m) of the rct
DAMAGES
Based on the foregoing findings of fact and

conclusions of law, the plaintiff is entitled to recover all

out-of-pccket Expenses proximately caused by the defendant's

-
4}

cefective construction of her home, the cost of repair of
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(1) Out-of-pocket EXpenses.....vovvveeeee...$ 2,500.00

(2) Cost of Repair
(a) Concrete cracks, paint, windows
doors, locks, tiles, etc....... .... 20,000.00

(b) Roof " B B R B B E N N N E N N E E N N HE N N NN N NN RN E RN 6,300.00
{(c) Termite Eradication seeassssnnssnns 200.00
(@) misw (2} weeke lodoinc at g

hotel during repair - 14 davs
at $90.00 PEr G&Y 4.u..uusonsnsanes 1,260.00

{2} Loss of Harket Valu® v erveiececocrsoncs 106.00
- . A~ o
TOTAL e v vsecvnnmesvennvesnsnnsssrsnsoss B3l ,060.00
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d), the plainti

entitled to her reasconable attorr

iey's fees anb5 costs, The
plaintiff shall motion the court within five (5) days for such

an award by filing her reguest and affidavit for costs ang fees

upon approval, shall be entered in the judoment.
The plaintiff's claim for nominal cdamages pursuant to

actual

h

CMC § 5106 is denied based on tie court's award o

ental and counseguentieal

damages 1s also denied on the basis that such damages are not
recoverable under any cause of action either raised in the
compleint or presented at trial. The court notes that Collins

v, Uniroyal, L c , 126 N.J. Super. 401 (App.Div. 1973), the

authority cited for plaintiff's recovery of incidental &nd

consequential damages involved a breach of an express warranty




governed Dby the Uniform Commercial Code, Incidental and
conseguential damages were awarded on the basis of the U.C.C.
provision specifically providing for their recovery. The

instant case does not fall within the scope of the CNMI U.C.C.
{5 CMC §§ 1101-10104) Moreover, contract damages are not

recoverable beyond an amount that the evidence permits to be

estepblished with reasonzble certainty. Restatement (Second) of
Contracts, & 352 (1979). See footnote 3. The plaintifits
testimony that her loss o0f enjoyment and cdetericration in

guality of life are worth $10,000 falls far short of this
a

"rezscnable certainty" standard. Acdditionally, Trecovery nma

g

not be had for emotional disturbance unlecss the breach also
caused bodily harm or the contract or breach is of such a kind

that serious emotional dJdisturbance would be & particularly

likely result, Id. at § 353. The plaintiff's testimony
concerning he; distress while locked inside her bathroom does

not meet the reqguirements of this section of the restatement

either.
ision shall constitute the findings
~f  fac cf law cf the court, Judgowent shall
be entered accordingly.
pated this ngi/ day of April, 1990,

Cacho issociate Judge




